
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Kirsty Hunt 
Telephone: 01344 352281 
Email: kirsty.hunt@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 28 October 2011 

  

 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Governance & Audit Committee 
Tuesday 8 November 2011, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
To: The Governance & Audit Committee 
Councillor Ward (Chairman), Councillor Wade (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Allen, Ms Brown, 
Heydon, McCracken, Thompson, Worrall and Mr G S Anderson 
cc: Substitute Members of the Committee 
Councillors Mrs Ballin, Blatchford, Mrs Hayes, Leake, Mrs McCracken and Mrs Temperton 
 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Governance & Audit Committee 
Tuesday 8 November 2011, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, and the 
nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be considered at this 
meeting.  
 

 

3. Minutes - 29 September 2011   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the 
Committee held on 29 September 2011.  
 

1 - 6 

4. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

5. Annual Audit Letter   

 To receive the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit Letter for 2010/11.  
 

7 - 24 

6. Internal Audit Assurance report   

 To receive a summary of Internal Audit activity during the period April to 
October 2011 covering work carried out by both internal audit 
contractors and the in-house team.   
 

25 - 42 

 



GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
29 SEPTEMBER 2011 
7.33  - 9.11 PM 
  
 
Present: 
Bracknell Forest Council: 
Councillors Ward (Chairman), Ms Brown, Heydon, McCracken, Thompson, Blatchford and 
Leake 
 
Independent Members: 
Gordon Anderson 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Allen, Wade and Worrall 
  
 

51. Apologies for Absence  
The Committee noted that attendance of the following substitute Members: 
 

Councillor Blatchford for Councillor Wade 
Councillor Leake for Councillor Worrall. 

52. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

53. Minutes - 28 June 2011  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2011 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

54. Update on progress - Certification of Claims and Returns  
The Chief Officer Housing, presented an update report on the Certification of Claims 
and Returns Annual Report: Housing Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy and Housing 
Benefit Internal Audit Report 2010/11. The report provided the Committee with an 
update on the actions agreed in response to the Certification of Claims and Returns 
Annual Report and Internal Audit Report as well as progress in relation to the 
2010/11 certification of housing and council tax benefit claim. 
 
It was reported that the benefit service had fundamentally changed the way in which 
work was allocated to benefit officers with a restructured management team to 
improve the service.  
 
It was noted that since the Committee’s previous meeting the benefit service had 
been subject to three spot checks of assessment work. During these spot checks 
internal audit had found no significant assessment issues. A system error had been 
identified and would be fixed by the software provider in the new year. 

Agenda Item 3

1



 

 
Internal audit had confirmed that the parameters on the new benefit system had been 
correctly set and that there was a satisfactory audit trail of the transference of data 
between the two benefit systems. It was reported that the benefit assessors found the 
Northgate System easier to use than the Pericles system however, it was not as 
straight forward to produce data for reconciliation purposes from the system. 
 
Sample checking of the work, to provide an audit trail on how decisions had been 
reached, on benefit entitlement had been undertaken with staff to ensure the 
verification check list was completed. To date, out of 570 claims checked there were 
6 where a satisfactory verification checklist was not in place.     
 
The accuracy rate for benefit assessment for 2010/11 was 87%. To date in 2011/12 
over 10% of claims had been checked with the accuracy rate for quality currently 
running at 90% on an upward trajectory following resolution of processing errors with 
staff. It was noted that some of the errors found could have an effect on the amount 
of benefit received however some would be procedural. 
 
Spot testing of the calculation of earnings which tested 20 new claims in May and 
June concluded that assessment of claims was satisfactory based on the 
documentation provided which meant no errors were found. It was agreed that the 
Chief Officer: Housing, would provide Members of the Committee with a breakdown 
of the financial errors found during the 40 cases currently being spot checked.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

a) the progress in relation to the action plan in response to the findings of the 
certification of the Housing and Council Tax Subsidy Claim be noted, and 

 
b) an update of progress be reported at the Governance and Audit Committee’s 

meeting on 24 January 2012. 

55. Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny and Adoption of 
Reports and Recommendations  
The Head of Overview and Scrutiny presented the report which gave details of two 
changes to the Constitution requested by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission; 
firstly a Public Participation Scheme for Overview & Scrutiny, and secondly to extend 
to the Overview & Scrutiny Panels the Commission’s power to adopt scrutiny reports, 
the making of recommendations to the Executive, Full Council and other 
organisations. 
 
The Committee noted that the Public Participation Scheme for Overview & Scrutiny 
was similar of those already in existence for other Committees of the Council. The 
scheme was aimed at improving public engagement with Overview and Scrutiny and 
offered residents a further opportunity to tell Councillors directly about the things that 
concerned them. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Commission decided to seek approval to extend to the 
O&S Panels the Commission’s power to adopt Overview and Scrutiny reports, the 
making of recommendations to the Executive, Full Council and other organisations. 
Together with the Commission stepping aside from considering the responses to 
reports by O&S Panels, to empower the Panels more appropriately, improve the 
speed and efficiency of the O&S process, and relieve the pressure on the O&S 
Commission’s agendas. 
 

2



 

RESOVED that: 
 

a) the draft Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny, set out in 
Appendix 1 be recommended to Council for adoption, and 

 
b) extending to the Overview and Scrutiny Panels the Commission’s power to 

adopt Overview and Scrutiny reports, the making of recommendations to the 
Executive, Full Council and other organisations be recommended to Council 
for adoption. 

56. Annual Governance Report  
The Borough Treasurer, introduced the Annual Governance Report which 
summarised the work carried out by the Council’s external auditors to discharge their 
statutory audit responsibilities. 
 
It was noted that since publication of the draft letter of representation two adjustments 
had been made. Firstly the deletion of the last sentence of the first paragraph and 
secondly, a change to the paragraph entitled ‘Other Representations’ which would 
now read: ‘In respect of Voluntary Aided schools, the Council only owns the freehold 
of playing fields for 2 Schools - St Michael's Easthampstead and St Michael's 
Sandhurst.’. 
 
Phil Sharman, District Auditor presented the Committee with key highlights from the 
Annual Governance Report which summarised the findings from the 2010/11 audit 
including messages arising from the financial statements and arrangements for value 
for money. 
 
An unqualified opinion was given on the Financial Statements which was a significant 
achievement for the Council as it had been the first year of preparing the accounts in 
accordance with IFRS.  
 
The Committee received a tabled paper which gave an update to Appendix 3 of the 
report: Unadjusted misstatements in the financial statements. The updated Appendix 
included an additional item in relation to Voluntary Aided School playing fields which 
had previously been omitted. The District Auditor was happy for the errors identified 
to remain unadjusted as they sat below the tolerable threshold however, they would 
be included in future Statements’ of Accounts. 
 
It was reported that the Council had proper arrangements in place to secure financial 
resilience with robust systems and processes to effectively manage financial risks 
with the main risk being able to achieve a balanced budget over the medium term 
with reduced funding. An unqualified opinion was give for Value for Money with the 
Council having adequate arrangements in place. In the future the Council would need 
to maintain an emphasis on strategic policy changes. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 

a) the adjustments to the financial statements set out in the report (appendix 2); 
be noted, 

 
b) the errors in the financial statements identified, that management has 

declined to amend, or set out the reasons for not amending the errors 
(appendix 3) be noted. 

3



 

57. Statement of Accounts 2010/11  
The Chief Accountant presented the Statement of Accounts 2010/11 which had been 
subjected to audit by the District Auditor. The report summarised the key elements 
within the accounts, presentational changes, the findings of the audit and highlighted 
key changes made to the Statement of Accounts. 
 
It was reported that this was the thirteenth consecutive year that the Council had 
spent within its budget. Taking in to account the underspend the Council returned 
£1.125m to reserves. Three items had been treated as exceptional in the accounts 
which were; changes in VAT legislation which resulted in VAT refunds totalling 
£0.225m, a revenue reserve in relation to Ufton Court resulting in additional revenue 
funds of £0.117m and a pension service adjustment reducing the Council’s liabilities 
in the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund by £29.3m. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

a) the Statement of Accounts 2010/11 (attached) be approved, 
 

b) the out-turn expenditure for the year be noted and the provisions (£1.722m 
per section 5.3) and earmarked reserves (£11.320m per section 5.4 )be 
approved, 

 
c) the Chairman of the meeting be authorised to sign and date the Statement of 

Accounts on behalf of the Committee, 
 

d) the Draft Letter of Representation set out in Appendix 4 of the District 
Auditor’s Annual Governance Report (subject to the amendments detailed in 
minute 56) be approved.  

Update on the Position of the Audit Commission 
The District Auditor gave a brief update on the current position of the Audit 
Commission. It was reported that Government had decided that the work of the Audit 
Commission would be transferred to the Private Sector with contracts for local 
authority audits currently out to tender.  
 
A new Auditor would be appointed for 2011/12 as Phil Sharman would no longer be 
working for the Audit Commission. 
 
It was noted that the Council would be informed of the new external auditor for the 
2012/13 audit between April and July 2012. 

58. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-
Year Review Report 2011/12  
The Chief Technical Accountant, presented the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-Year Review Report 2011/12. The 
mid-year report had been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice and 
included; an economic update for the first six months of 2011/12, a review of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy and a 
review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2011/12. 
 
Worldwide the financial markets were still uncertain with growth rates in the UK lower 
than expected. Uncertainty in the economic forecast remained high due a number of 
factors including: the potential for a major EU sovereign debt crisis, the degree to 

4



 

which government austerity programmes will dampen growth, low and modest growth 
in the UK expected to continue and a low Bank Rate to continue for at least 12 
months.   
 
It was reported that there were no policy changes to the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement. The Committee noted that there would be £7.490m of carry-
forward in the total Capital Programme. It was noted that a significant amount of this 
was from school refurbishments that straddled more than one year. 
 
RESOLVED that the Mid-Year Review Report be shared with members of the Full 
Council. 

59. Risk Management Strategy 2011/12  
The Borough Treasurer presented the report which gave an update on the Risk 
Management Strategy 2011/12. 
 
The Strategy had been updated to reflect progress made in the last year, the 
changes made to recording and reporting of risks and the current priorities for 
embedding risk management. Current priorities in the Strategy included: 
 
• to review the current arrangements for business continuity and make 

recommendations for improvement as appropriate; 
• to maintain quarterly review of the Strategic Risk Register by SRMG and 

implement twice yearly review of the Register by CMT; 
• to consult DMTs on their risk management training requirements and review 

Members risk management training needs; and 
• attendance of the Information Security Officer at SRMG to raise awareness of 

information governance risks. 
 
RESOLVED that the Risk Management Strategy for 2011/12 be agreed. 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
8 NOVEMBER 2011 
 
THE EXECUTIVE 
15 NOVEMBER 2011 

  
 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2010/11 
Chief Executive/Borough Treasurer  

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 To receive the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit Letter for 2010/11. 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
2.1 That the Governance and Audit Committee and the Executive note the Annual 

Audit Letter 2010/11 at Appendix 1. 
2.2 That recommendations set out in the Annual Audit Letter 2010/11 are reflected 

in the Corporate Services Service Plan for the coming year. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
3.1 The Annual Audit Letter must be considered in public by those charged with 

governance.  In Bracknell Forest this is the Governance and Audit Committee.  
However, given the Executive’s overall responsibilities it is important that it also 
receives the report. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 None 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
5.1 The Audit Commission is required to provide the Council with an Annual Audit Letter 

(set out at Appendix 1).  The letter summarises the findings from the 2010/11 audit, 
which comprises two elements: 

 
• the audit of the financial statements; and 
• the District Auditor’s assessment of the Council’s arrangements to 

achieve value for money in the use of resources. 
5.2 The Audit Commission has given an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial 

statements.  An unqualified conclusion has also been given on the Council’s 
arrangements for securing value for money.  Three recommendations are set out in 
the report and given that the focus is largely on strategic financial issues it is 
recommended that these be reflected in the Corporate Services Service Plan for the 
coming year. 

Agenda Item 5

7



5.3 The District Auditor, Phil Sharman, will attend the meeting of the Governance and 
Audit Committee to present the Annual Audit Letter 2010/11. 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
Borough Solicitor 

6.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
Borough Treasurer 

6.2 Nothing to add to the report. 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 There are no specific issues arising directly from this report. 
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 The Annual Audit Letter identifies the strategic financial risks facing the Council.  
These will be addressed through the Strategic Risk Register, Service Plans and the 
Council’s financial planning process. 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Not applicable. 

Background Papers 

None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Alan Nash, Borough Treasurer - 01344 352180 
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref. 
F:\Governance & Audit Committee\Meeting 8 November 2011\Annual Audit Letter 2011.doc 
 

8



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

1
 A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r
B

ra
ck

n
el

l F
o

re
st

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

9



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..3

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

4

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..4

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
4

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
5

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..6

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
8

C
u

rr
en

t 
an

d
 f

u
tu

re
 c

h
al

le
n

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..9

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
1

C
lo

si
n

g
 r

em
ar

ks
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

2

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 -

 F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
13

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 -

 G
lo

ss
ar

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
4

    

T
ra

ff
ic

 li
g

h
t 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 

R
ed

   
   

   
  A

m
be

r 
   

   
   

 G
re

en
 

10



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

3
 K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 
T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

fr
o

m
 m

y 
20

10
/1

1 
au

d
it

. M
y 

au
d

it
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s 

tw
o

 e
le

m
en

ts
: 

 
 

 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; 
an

d
 

 
m

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

ar
ra

n
g

em
en

ts
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 in

 y
o

u
r 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
. 

I h
av

e 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 o
n

ly
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

in
 t

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

. T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 a
cc

ep
te

d
 t

h
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s.

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
O

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

U
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 
 

P
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I i
ss

ue
d 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

n 
30

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il:
 

 
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 w
el

l f
or

 th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
to

 IF
R

S
; 

 
 

ne
ed

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
fix

ed
 a

ss
et

s.
  

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 
I i

ss
ue

d 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
yo

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il:

 
 

 
ha

s 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 d
iff

ic
ul

t d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

lie
 a

he
ad

 a
nd

 h
as

 s
et

 u
p 

a 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
an

d 
id

en
tif

y 
op

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s;
 

 
 

ne
ed

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
lo

ng
er

-r
un

 s
av

in
gs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 s

hi
ft 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ou
nd

 o
f t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
. 

  

 

11



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

4
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

an
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t  

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
ar

e 
an

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

m
ea

n
s 

b
y 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
it

s 
st

ew
ar

d
sh

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n

d
s.

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

I i
ss

ue
d 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

n 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

.  

In
 2

01
0/

11
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 h

ad
 to

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 u
nd

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
) 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e.
 R

es
ta

tin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f I
F

R
S

 w
as

 a
 c

om
pl

ex
 ta

sk
. Y

ou
 ta

ck
le

d 
th

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

w
el

l b
y 

ca
rr

yi
ng

 o
ut

 e
ar

ly
 p

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 w

or
k.

 M
y 

au
di

t 
sh

ow
ed

 g
oo

d 
ov

er
al

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 C
IP

F
A

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

.  

In
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
I h

av
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 v

al
ue

s 
fo

r 
as

se
ts

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 p

ro
pe

rly
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

ei
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
si

ze
, c

on
di

tio
n,

 u
sa

ge
 a

nd
 e

st
im

at
ed

 li
fe

. A
lth

ou
gh

 s
om

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

as
 m

ad
e 

in
 2

01
0/

11
 th

er
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 s
co

pe
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 

M
y 

au
di

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 s

om
e 

as
se

ts
 e

ith
er

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r 

or
 in

cl
ud

ed
 b

ut
 w

ith
 in

co
rr

ec
t v

al
ua

tio
ns

. T
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

so
m

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
as

 v
ar

ia
bl

e.
 M

y 
au

di
t a

ls
o 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
so

m
e 

as
se

ts
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ca

pi
ta

lis
at

io
n 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
ha

d 
be

en
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 
ca

pi
ta

lis
ed

.  

Lo
ok

in
g 

ah
ea

d,
 C

IP
F

A
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 o
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 to

 v
al

ui
ng

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

ss
et

s.
 T

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 p

ot
en

tia
l n

ew
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s,

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 r
ob

us
t h

ig
hw

ay
s 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

ss
et

 in
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

 to
 h

el
p 

co
nf

irm
 a

ss
et

s 
ex

is
t. 

 

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

I h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 y

ou
r 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 h
av

e 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 it
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  I
 d

id
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

M
y 

au
di

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 s

co
pe

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

jo
ur

na
ls

. S
om

e 
jo

ur
na

ls
 p

ro
ce

ss
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l l

ed
ge

r 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
no

t a
lre

ad
y 

go
ne

 
th

ro
ug

h 
fe

ed
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
o 

au
th

or
is

at
io

n 
st

ep
 fo

r 
th

es
e.

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 in
te

nd
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 w
ea

kn
es

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
up

gr
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 le
dg

er
.  

12



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

5
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
1

M
on

ito
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
in

 m
y 

an
nu

al
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 o
n 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tr

ol
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
 

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
fix

ed
 a

ss
et

s 

 
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
jo

ur
na

l p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

  

 

13



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

6
 V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 

I c
o

n
si

d
er

ed
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l i
s 

m
an

ag
in

g
 a

n
d

 u
si

n
g

 it
s 

m
o

n
ey

, t
im

e 
an

d
 p

eo
p

le
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
.  

I a
ss

es
se

d
 y

o
u

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

g
ai

n
st

 t
h

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 s

p
ec

if
ie

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 h

av
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
e 

as
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 (

V
F

M
) 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
. 

I a
ss

es
s 

yo
ur

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
ga

in
st

 tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. M

y 
ov

er
al

l c
on

cl
us

io
n 

is
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e,
 e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

  

M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 tw
o 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 a
re

as
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 k

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

1.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
  

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 in

 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

.

F
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
: 

 

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 
an

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
st

ab
le

 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 it

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
op

er
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

 

I h
av

e 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
. T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il:

 

 
 

ha
s 

a 
lo

ng
-r

un
 tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 r

ev
en

ue
 b

ud
ge

ts
; i

n 
20

10
/1

1 
it 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
n 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 o

f £
1.

7 
m

ill
io

n;
 

 
 

an
al

ys
es

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 b

ud
ge

t v
ar

ia
nc

es
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
rs

 h
ow

 th
ey

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

fin
al

 o
ut

-
tu

rn
. M

an
ag

em
en

t t
ak

es
 ti

m
el

y 
ac

tio
n 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ny
 b

ud
ge

t v
ar

ia
nc

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
m

ak
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

bu
dg

et
 in

 2
01

0 
an

d 
to

ok
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n,

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
-y

ea
r 

sa
vi

ng
s;

 

 
 

 e
ng

ag
es

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 it

 fa
ce

s;
  

 
 

 is
 r

ev
is

iti
ng

 it
s 

m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

ns
 a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
 to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

re
ne

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 fr
om

 2
01

2/
13

; t
he

se
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ce

; 

14



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

7
 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

 
 

ha
s 

a 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 te
am

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

co
ns

tr
uc

tiv
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
on

 fi
na

nc
ia

l m
at

te
rs

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 C
M

T
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

of
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
; 

 
 

ha
s 

ge
ne

ra
l f

un
d 

an
d 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
 b

al
an

ce
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

fu
nd

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

 c
os

ts
. I

n 
20

10
/1

1 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

as
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 r
es

er
ve

s 
of

 £
1.

1 
m

ill
io

n 
in

st
ea

d 
of

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f £

0.
6 

m
ill

io
n;

  

 
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

it 
pl

an
ne

d 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 2

01
0/

11
. W

hi
le

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

ba
ck

lo
g 

re
m

ai
ns

 h
ig

h,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ta

rg
et

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
w

ar
ds

 p
rio

rit
y 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

; 

 
 

ha
s 

tr
ea

su
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

ha
s 

su
ffi

ci
en

t c
as

h 
to

 m
ee

t i
ts

 n
ee

ds
 

- 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

a 
ba

la
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

cu
rit

y,
 li

qu
id

ity
 a

nd
 y

ie
ld

; a
nd

  

 
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
s 

its
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

an
d 

th
e 

ris
ks

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
es

e.
 It

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
its

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rs
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ar

re
ar

s.
  

T
he

 m
ai

n 
ris

k 
to

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
es

ili
en

ce
 is

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
of

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
bu

dg
et

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 w

ith
 r

ed
uc

ed
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

2.
 S

ec
u

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 

fo
r 

ch
al

le
n

g
in

g
 h

o
w

 it
 s

ec
u

re
s 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
 

 F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
w

ith
in

 ti
gh

te
r 

bu
dg

et
s,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e 

by
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 
co

st
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
. 

I h
av

e 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il:
 

 
 

ha
s 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

at
 d

iff
ic

ul
t d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 li
e 

ah
ea

d 
an

d 
ha

s 
se

t u
p 

a 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
an

d 
id

en
tif

y 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

de
liv

er
in

g 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

st
-e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 it

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. T

he
y 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 c

os
t r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

sp
en

di
ng

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t d

ec
is

io
ns

; 

 
 

ha
s 

a 
fo

cu
s 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
20

12
/1

3 
bu

dg
et

 b
ut

 is
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 b

ey
on

d 
th

at
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

s 
a 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 r
ef

or
m

s 
to

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ce

: 

 
 

ha
s 

a 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f c
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 S
er

vi
ce

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
tr

at
eg

y;
 

 
 

ha
s 

a 
cu

ltu
re

 o
f c

on
st

an
tly

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
us

es
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 in
fo

rm
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

vi
ew

s;
 

 
 

co
ns

id
er

s 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

; 

 
 

ha
s 

ov
er

al
l c

os
ts

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pa

re
 w

el
l w

ith
 o

th
er

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
kn

ow
s 

w
hi

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

er
 c

os
t a

nd
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

du
e 

to
 p

rio
rit

ie
s;

 a
nd

 

15



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

8
 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

 
 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 it
s 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

an
d 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t. 

T
he

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 it

s 
op

er
at

io
n 

on
ce

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

ha
pe

 o
f l

oc
al

 p
ub

lic
 a

ud
it 

is
 

kn
ow

n.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
lo

ng
er

-r
un

 s
av

in
gs

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 to

 s
hi

ft 
th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 r
ou

nd
 o

f t
ar

ge
ts

 to
 b

al
an

ce
 th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
2

 M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

op
tio

ns
, a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
ch

ie
ve

 lo
ng

 r
un

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

    

16



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

9
 C

u
rr

en
t 

an
d

 f
u

tu
re

 c
h

al
le

n
g

es
 

  
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

an
d 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
T

he
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

de
fic

it 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
ar

e 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pa
ct

 
on

 p
ub

lic
 fi

na
nc

es
. I

t i
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

bo
di

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
is

 C
ou

nc
il,

 to
 

fu
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 s
om

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 in
co

m
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 r

ed
uc

e.
 

T
he

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 S

pe
nd

in
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 (
C

S
R

) 
re

fe
rs

 to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ot

en
tia

l r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 4
 y

ea
rs

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

be
en

 n
ot

ifi
ed

 o
f i

ts
 s

et
tle

m
en

t f
or

 2
01

1/
12

 
an

d 
20

12
/1

3.
 B

ey
on

d 
th

at
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

w
ay

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

s 
to

 
fu

nd
ed

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
lis

at
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s.

  

T
he

 w
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
ch

an
gi

ng
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
pe

rs
on

al
is

at
io

n 
ag

en
da

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
N

H
S

. T
he

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

de
m

an
d 

le
d 

bu
dg

et
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

th
er

ef
or

e 
fa

ce
s 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
le

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 s

av
in

gs
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

se
t a

 r
ev

en
ue

 b
ud

ge
t o

f £
74

m
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
pl

an
ne

d 
w

ith
dr

aw
al

 fr
om

 
re

se
rv

es
 o

f £
0.

6m
. D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

an
 u

nd
er

 s
pe

nd
 o

f £
1.

7m
 a

nd
 a

dd
ed

 £
1.

1m
 to

 r
es

er
ve

s.
 T

he
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

re
se

rv
e 

at
 M

ar
ch

 
20

11
 a

t £
10

.0
m

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
so

m
e 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

 d
ec

la
re

d 
pr

ud
en

t m
in

im
um

 o
f £

4m
.  

F
or

 2
01

1/
12

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

se
t t

he
 b

ud
ge

t a
t £

75
m

. T
hi

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
of

 5
.0

m
 a

nd
 a

 
pl

an
ne

d 
us

e 
of

 £
1.

6m
 fr

om
 r

es
er

ve
s 

to
 fu

nd
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 g
ap

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 r
ev

is
iti

ng
 

its
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
ns

 to
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
re

ne
w

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 fr
om

 2
01

2/
13

.  
In

 
do

in
g 

so
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
po

lic
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

lo
ng

er
 

te
rm

 s
av

in
gs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 s

hi
ft 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ou
nd

 o
f t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 
th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

.  
 

M
y 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

nd
ic

at
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 ta

ki
ng

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
st

ep
s 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 to

 it
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

bi
lit

y 
ov

er
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

ca
n 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

de
liv

er
 k

ey
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

its
 r

es
id

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
di

t. 

17



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

10
 

 
 

In
co

m
e 

st
re

am
s 

In
co

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ec

lin
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
, i

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 in
co

m
e 

fr
om

 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 a
nd

 g
ol

f f
ac

ili
tie

s.
 In

 2
01

0/
11

 th
is

 w
as

 p
ar

tly
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nc

om
e 

fr
om

 c
ar

 
pa

rk
in

g,
 th

e 
ce

m
et

er
y 

an
d 

cr
em

at
or

iu
m

. I
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

in
co

m
e 

fr
om

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 

ca
r 

pa
rk

in
g,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 s
po

rt
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

is
 u

nd
er

 p
re

ss
ur

e.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

hi
s 

on
 it

s 
bu

dg
et

, r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

at
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 o
pt

im
is

in
g 

re
ve

nu
e 

ac
ro

ss
 b

ot
h 

cu
rr

en
t a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l i

nc
om

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
 

T
re

as
ur

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
op

er
at

es
 it

s 
T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ca

sh
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

sh
or

t t
er

m
 li

qu
id

ity
 a

nd
 to

 fu
nd

 c
ap

ita
l. 

It 
al

so
 a

im
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 
fr

om
 s

ur
pl

us
 fu

nd
s,

 w
hi

le
 m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

ris
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
is

.  
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

se
t i

ts
 2

01
1/

12
 b

ud
ge

t a
nt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
th

at
 lo

w
 s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
ed

 
ca

sh
 b

al
an

ce
s 

to
 e

ar
n 

in
te

re
st

 w
ou

ld
 p

ut
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

t y
ie

ld
s.

 L
oo

ki
ng

 a
he

ad
 th

er
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
ab

ou
t t

he
 E

ur
oz

on
e 

so
ve

re
ig

n 
de

bt
 c

ris
is

 a
nd

 th
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 
ec

on
om

ic
 r

ec
ov

er
y.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 a
re

 fo
re

ca
st

 to
 r

em
ai

n 
lo

w
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 in
 2

01
2/

13
.  

E
ar

ly
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

8,
 th

e 
Ic

el
an

di
c 

ba
nk

s 
La

nd
sb

an
ki

, K
au

pt
hi

ng
 a

nd
 G

lit
ni

r 
co

lla
ps

ed
 a

nd
 

th
e 

U
K

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s 
of

 th
es

e 
ba

nk
s,

 H
er

ita
bl

e 
an

d 
K

au
pt

hi
ng

 S
in

ge
r 

an
d 

F
rie

dl
an

de
r 

w
en

t i
nt

o 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
£5

 m
ill

io
n 

de
po

si
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 tw
o 

of
 th

es
e 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
 a

t t
ha

t 
po

in
t. 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

an
 a

nn
ua

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
re

co
ve

ra
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

es
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

os
se

s 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
e 

of
 £

2.
3m

.  

In
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 H

er
ita

bl
e 

ba
nk

 (
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
ve

st
ed

 £
2 

m
ill

io
n)

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 r

ec
ov

er
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 8

5 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
01

2/
13

 (
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 6

0 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 to

 d
at

e)
.  

 

In
 te

rm
s 

of
 G

lit
ne

r 
B

an
k 

(w
ith

 w
ho

m
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

ve
st

ed
 £

3 
m

ill
io

n)
 p

os
iti

on
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 

up
on

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

S
up

re
m

e 
C

ou
rt

 u
ph

ol
ds

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
de

po
si

ts
 a

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
cr

ed
ito

rs
. I

f 
pr

io
rit

y 
st

at
us

 is
 n

ot
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 fu

ll 
re

co
ve

ry
 w

ill
 fa

ll 
to

 3
5 

pe
r 

ce
nt

.  
A

 d
ec

is
io

n 
is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 s

ho
rt

ly
 a

nd
 a

ny
 im

pa
irm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

in
 2

01
1/

12
. 

 

18



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

11
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
3

 In
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f b

ro
ad

er
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t f

in
an

ci
al

 r
eg

im
e,

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
es

ili
en

ce
 b

y 
up

da
tin

g 
th

e 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ol

ic
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

lo
ng

er
-r

un
 s

av
in

gs
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
. 

  

19



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

12
 C

lo
si

n
g

 r
em

ar
ks

 
I h

av
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 th
is

 le
tte

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 T

re
as

ur
er

. I
 w

ill
 p

re
se

nt
 th

is
 le

tte
r 

at
 th

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 a

nd
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

op
ie

s 
to

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

F
or

es
t C

ou
nc

il.
 

F
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
le

d 
fin

di
ng

s,
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 m
y 

au
di

t a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

s 
is

su
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
 R

ep
o

rt
D

at
e 

is
su

ed
 

A
ud

it 
fe

e 
le

tte
r 

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 

A
ud

it 
pl

an
  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

IF
R

S
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

of
fic

er
s 

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t  
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 

F
in

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

m
em

or
an

du
m

 to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t  

ex
pe

ct
ed

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 o

ur
 a

ud
it.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
la

st
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

th
at

 I 
w

ill
 p

re
se

nt
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
rin

g 
m

y 
te

rm
 o

f o
ffi

ce
 a

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
  A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
 I 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 th
an

k 
bo

th
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 m

em
be

rs
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

o-
op

er
at

io
n 

to
 m

e 
an

d 
m

y 
au

di
t 

te
am

 d
ur

in
g 

m
y 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t. 

 

 P
hi

l S
ha

rm
an

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
u

d
it
o

r 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

20



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

13
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 -
 F

ee
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ct

u
al

P
ro

p
o

se
d

V
ar

ia
n

ce

S
ca

le
 fe

e 
£2

56
,6

00
 

£2
56

,6
00

 
£0

 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

- 
re

vi
ew

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
£2

,5
00

 
£0

 
£2

,5
00

 

T
o

ta
l

£2
59

,1
00

£2
56

,6
00

£2
,5

00

  

21



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

14
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 -
 G

lo
ss

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

is
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 th

e 
rig

ht
 th

in
gs

, i
n 

th
e 

rig
ht

 w
ay

, f
or

 th
e 

rig
ht

 p
eo

pl
e,

 in
 a

 ti
m

el
y,

 
in

cl
us

iv
e,

 o
pe

n,
 h

on
es

t a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 m
an

ne
r.

 

It 
co

m
pr

is
es

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 c

ul
tu

re
s 

an
d 

va
lu

es
, b

y 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 
ac

co
un

t t
o,

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, l

ea
d 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ep
or

t b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 it
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 it
s 

ow
n 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

co
de

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 h

ow
 

it 
ha

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 it
s 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
, a

nd
 o

n 
an

y 
pl

an
ne

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

pe
rio

d.
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
 

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n;
 a

nd
  

 
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pr
op

er
ly

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

ru
le

s.
   

O
p

in
io

n

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

 
 

I f
in

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
; o

r 
 

 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

on
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 h

as
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
cr

ite
ria

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
.  

If 
I f

in
d 

th
at

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 h
ad

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, I

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. I

f I
 fi

nd
 th

at
 it

 d
id

 n
ot

, I
 is

su
e 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

22



  If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
 

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

 
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
8 NOVEMBER 2011 

  
 

INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE REPORT 
April –October 2011 

  
Head of Audit and Risk Management 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 This report provides a summary of Internal Audit activity during the period April to 

October 2011.  It covers work carried out by both internal audit contractors and the 
in-house team. Any significant developments since the time of writing will be reported 
verbally to the Committee and included in future assurance reports.   

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to note the attached report. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
3.1 To ensure that the Governance and Audit Committee are aware of the internal audit 

work performed and conclusions reached. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 No alternative options available. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Background 

 
5.1 Under the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation the Borough Treasurer is 

responsible for the administration of the financial affairs of the Council under Section 
151 of the Local Government Act 1972.  Professional guidance issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) requires the 
provision of an effective Internal Audit function to partly fulfil his responsibilities under 
Section 151. 

 
5.2 The provision of Internal Audit services is largely outsourced to H. W Controls and 

Assurance under a contract for 3 years which commenced on 1 April 2009. H.W 
Controls and Assurance are responsible for delivering approximately three quarters 
of the audits set out in the Annual Internal Audit Plan approved by the Governance 
and Audit Committee in March 2011. In addition, to date four audits have been 
carried out internally and 12 audits were by other providers as set out in Section 3.1 
of my report. The attached report summarises delivery to date on the audits 
approved under the Plan and other activities carried out in-house.   

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
Borough Solicitor 

Agenda Item 6

25



6.1 Nothing to add. 
Borough Treasurer 

6.2 Nothing to add. 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 Internal Audit provides assurance on the Council’s control environment based on the 
work undertaken and areas audited. Internal control is based upon an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise risks and to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they arise. The system of internal 
control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate risk 
of failure altogether.  No system of control can provide absolute assurance against 
material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance.   
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 Not applicable. 
 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
7.1 Not applicable. 
 Method of Consultation 
7.2 Not applicable. 
 Representations Received 
7.3 Not applicable. 

Background Papers 
 
Internal Audit Reports 
Annual Internal Plan 2011/12 
Contract Monitoring Records 
Quality Questionnaires 
NFI submissions 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit 
Strategic Risk Register 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Alan Nash – 01344 352180 
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
  
Sally Hendrick – 01344 352092 
sally.hendrick@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

26



           

         
        

     
      

 
 

 
HEAD OF AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

REPORT 
 

APRIL – OCTOBER 2011 
 

 
 

27



1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) 

(England) Regulations to “maintain an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its systems of internal control in 
accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control.” This 
report summarises the activities of Internal Audit for the period April to 
October 2011 drawing together progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan, 
risk management and other activities carried out by Internal Audit.  

 
 
2. INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
2.1 The basic approach adopted by Internal Audit falls broadly into three types of 

audit: 
 

• System reviews provide assurance that the system of control in all 
activities undertaken by the Council is appropriate and adequately protects 
the Council’s interests.   

 
• Regularity (financial) checking helps ensure that the accounts maintained 

by the Council accurately reflect the business transacted during the year.  
It also contributes directly towards the external auditor’s audit of the annual 
accounts.   

 
• Computer/IT audits, carried out by specialist audit staff, provide assurance 

that an adequate level of control exists over the provision and use of 
computing facilities. 

 
2.2  Recommendations are made after individual audits, leading to an overall 

assurance opinion for the system or establishment under review and building 
into an overall annual assurance opinion on the Council’s operations.  The 
different categories of recommendation and assurance opinion are set out in 
the following tables. 

 
 Recommendation Classifications 
 
 

PRIORITY DESCRIPTION 
IMPLEMENTATION 
DATE INDICATOR 

 
1 Essential – addresses a 

fundamental control weakness 
and must be brought to the 
specific attention of senior 
management and resolved. 

Immediate 

2 Important – addresses a control 
weakness and should be resolved 
by management in their area(s) of 
responsibility. 

To agreed timetable. 

3 Best practice – addresses a 
potential improvement or 
amendment issue. 

Following consideration 

28



 
 
 Assurance Opinion Classifications 
 

ASSURANCE 
LEVEL 

DEFINITION 

Significant There is a sound system of internal controls to meet the 
system objectives and testing performed indicates that 
controls are being consistently applied 

Satisfactory There is basically a sound system of internal controls 
although there are some minor weaknesses in controls 
and/or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
may put some minor systems objectives at risk. 

Limited There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the systems objectives at 
risk and/or the level of compliance or non-compliance puts 
some of the systems objectives at risk.  All audits that 
generate a Priority 1 recommendation will receive a limited 
assurance opinion, at least. 

No Assurance Control is weak leaving the system open to significant 
error or abuse and/or there is significant non-compliance 
with basic controls. 

 
 
2.3 Internal Audit provide the Borough Treasurer with details of all audits that 

receive a limited (or no) assurance opinion, as soon as the draft report is 
issued.  This ensures that the Section 151 Officer is informed at the earliest 
opportunity of any potential weaknesses or problem areas.  Directors are also 
notified of every final audit report issued within their Directorate and the 
resulting assurance level.  This is at the final report stage for audits other than 
those with a limited or no assurance opinion, when Directors receive a copy 
of the draft report. 

 
 
3. SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT RESULTS TO DATE 
 
3.1 The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 was considered and approved by 

the Governance and Audit Committee on 22nd March 2011. The delivery of 
the individual audits is largely undertaken by our contractors H.W. Controls 
and Assurance. H.W Controls and Assurance are responsible for delivering 
approximately three quarters of the audits set out in the Annual Internal Audit 
Plan approved by the Governance and Audit Committee in March 2011. In 
addition, to date three audits within the Annual Internal Audit Plan have been 
carried out internally and 12 audits were undertaken under the S113 
arrangement with Reading and Wokingham Borough Councils’ Internal Audit 
Teams and audit specialism on housing benefits was brought in for one audit.  

 
3.2 During the period April to October 2011, 25 reports were finalised, 9 had been 

issued in draft awaiting management responses, 2 were issued as a pre-draft 
for discussion and in 15 cases audit work was in progress.  In addition, two 
grant claims have been certified, 5 memos had been finalised and 1 memo 
was in draft awaiting management responses. In these cases memos were 
produced in place of reports as the reviews were targeted work on housing 

29



benefits rather than full systems reviews.  The outcomes from this targeted 
work on housing benefits are positive, with the spot checks identifying only 
minor errors.  The Committee are, however, reminded that as the testing is 
focussed on current cases it will take a period of time before these results are 
reflected in the external audit of the housing benefit and council tax benefit 
grant claims.  A summary of assurance levels is given below for the finalised 
and draft reports issued. 

 
ASSURANCE APRIL – OCTOBER 

2011 
 
Significant (Data Quality) 
 

1 
 
Satisfactory 
 

30 
 
Limited 
 

3 
 
None 
 

- 
 

Total 
 

34 

 
These results are in line with expectations.  Whilst there were only four limited 
assurance opinions in 2010/11 there were seven in 2009/10. 

 
3.3 The table below provides details by directorate on audits finalised, at draft 

stage and in progress setting out their status as at 31st October 2011.  

30



2010/11 AUDITS NOT PREVIOUSLY REPORTED TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date 
Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 

Corporate Services             
Mobile devices 28/3/11 24/6/11 Y   X    1  Final 
Environment Culture 
and Communities 

            
Purchasing and 
ordering 

15/12/10 1/7/10 Y 
 

 X    1  Final 
Adult Social Care 
and Health 

            
Emergency Duty Team 26/4/11 23/8/11 Y 

 

  X  5 8 5 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
responses 

 
 
2011/12 AUDITS 
 
 

Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 
Chief Executive’s Office 
 
Officer delegations 30/8/11           WIP 

Officer expenses 

1/8/11 17/10/11 Y   X     4 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
responses 

Data Quality 13/7/11 12/9/11 Y Satisfactory X    - - - Final 
Corporate Services  

31



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 
 
Bus Service 
Operators Grant 
BSOG   

23/5/11 9/6/11 Y Satisfactory N/A – Grant certification Final 

Change 
Management --IT 
audit 

22/6/11 27/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X     1 Final 

Officer Delegations 27/7/11           WIP 

Officer Expenses 

1/8/11 17/10/11 Y 

 

 X    1 3 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
responses 

IP Telephony (IPT) 
Platform –IT audit 

   
 

       Not due 

Follow up of 
compliance with 
PCI standards 

           Not due 

Treasury 
Management 

           Not due 

Creditors             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Debtors             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Main Accounting inc. 
Reconciliations 

3/10/11           WIP 

Payroll  3/10/11           WIP 
Cash Management            Not due 
Council Tax             Not due as 

QTR 4 audit 
NNDR              Not due as 

QTR 4 audit 
Procurement cards             Not due as 

QTR 4 audit 
Purchasing & 
Ordering 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

32



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 

Agresso Upgrade – 
IT audit 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Desktop 
Virtualisation Thin 
Client Project –IT 
audit 

   

 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Purchasing & 
Ordering 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Children, Young People and Learning 
 
Ascot Heath Junior 16/5/11 1/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    8 5 Final 
College Town Infant 
& Nursery 

13/6/11 14/7/11 N 
Satisfactory 

 X    6 2 Final 

College Town 
Junior 

8/6/11 22/6/11 Y   X    7 3 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
response 

Fox Hill Primary 
School 

12/9/11 16/9/11 Y 
Satisfactory 

 X    5 4 Final 

Holly Spring Junior 9/5/11 10/6/11 N Satisfactory  X    4  Final 
New Scotland Hill 
Primary 

15/6/11 22/6/11 Y 
Satisfactory 

 X    3 3 Final 

Owlsmoor Primary 14/9/11           WiP 
St. Joseph's 
Catholic 

25/5/11 24/6/11 N Satisfactory  X    11  Final 

St. Michael's CE - 
Sandhurst 

8/6/11 12/7/11 N Satisfactory  X    10 4 Final 

Warfield Primary 

19/9/11 13/10/11 N   X    6 7 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
response 

Binfield C E  18/5/11 6/7/11 N Unsatisfactory   X  1 16 9 Final 
Harmanswater 
Primary 

23/5/11 6/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    7 3 Final 

33



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 

Crown Wood 
Primary School (in 
house) 

28/6/11 19/7/11 Y   X    8 5 Final 

Wildmoor Heath 
School Follow up 
(in house) 

18/10/11           WIP 

Education Library 
Service 

20/6/11 18/8/11 N Satisfactory  X    1 2 Final 

Larchwood 28/6/11 9/9/11 N Satisfactory  X    4 1 Final 
Officer Expenses 1/6/11           WIP  
Youth Offending 
Service 

12/9/11 14/10/11 Y 

 

 X    2 1 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
response 

Sandhurst Youth 
Centre Follow Up 
(in house) 

20/9/11 4/10/11 Y   X    6 2 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
response 

Youth Centre 1The 
Zone @ Great 
Hollands 

22/9/11           WIP 

Youth Centre 2 - 
Cooper's Hill 

1/8/11   
 

       WIP  

Planned 
Maintenance & 
Capital Projec 

8/8/11 14/9/11 Y   X    3 5 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
response 

Playbuilder Grant 
(in house) 

15/8/11 15/8/11 Y 
 

N/A – Grant certification Final 

Purchasing & 
Ordering 

8/8/11   
 

       WIP  

Officer Delegations 9/8/11           WIP  
Easthampstead 
Park School 

           Not due 

34



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 

St. Michael's 
School 
Easthampstead 

           Not due 

Capita ONE (EMS) 
Changes _IT audit 

           Not due 

Free School Meals 
New Central 
System 

           Not due 

Off Site Activities 
F/Up Limited 
2010/11 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Free School Meals 
New Central 
System 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Birch Hill Primary             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Jennet's Park 
School 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

CAPITA ONE 
(EMS) changes  IT 
audit 

   
 

        Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Environment, Culture and Community 
 
Benefits Spot 
Testing Visit 1 

5/5/11 1/6/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo Final 

Benefits Spot 
Testing Visit 2 

14/6/11 24/6/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo Final 

Benefits 
Paremeters Testing 
Memo 

20/6/11 7/7/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo Final 

F/up Benefits Grant 
Claim Report + CIS 
Action Plan + f/up 

18/7/11 21/9/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo In draft 
awaiting 
management 

35



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 
previous recs response 
Benefits Results 
memo - 
reconciliations f/up - 
see above 

18/7/11 2/8/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo Final 

Housing 
Applications etc. 
RBC 

6/6/11 8/8/11 Y Satisfactory  X    1 3 Final 

Building Control & 
Land Charges 

1/6/11 24/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    4  Final 

Development 
Management - 
Planning 

4/7/11 16/8/11 Y Satisfactory  X     3 Final 

Easthampstead 
Park Centre 

9/5/11 10/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    8 5 Final 

Officer Expenses 31/5/11           WIP  
Housing Incentives  7/9/11 11/10/11 Y         Pre-draft out 

for 
discussion 

South Hill Park - 
Grounds Scheme 

           Not due 

Downshire Golf  25/8/11 17/10/11          Pre-draft out 
for 
discussion 

S106  Agreements            Not due 
Officer Delegations 5/9/11           WIP 
Benefits Testing –
Spot visit 3 

15/8/11 14/9/11 Y  Not Applicable - Memo Final 

Bracknell Sports & 
Leisure Centre  

           Not due 

Bracknell Central 
Library - Probity 

           Not due 

BACAS Application 
(Cem & Crem) 

           Not due 

36



Recommendations Assurance Level Priority 
Audit Start 

Date 
Date Draft 
Report 
Issued 

Key  
Indicator 

Met 
Client 

Questionnaire 
Received Significant Satisfactory Limited None 1 2 3 

Status 

Housing & C Tax 
Benefits 

           Not due 

Waste Collection             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Cash Spot Checks             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Purchasing & 
ordering 

            Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Adult Social Care and Health 
 
Officer Delegations 22/6/11           WIP  
Heathlands residential 
+ day centre 

25/5/11 24/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    4 10 Final 

Ladybank & 
Bridgewell  

18/5/11 24/6/11 Y Satisfactory  X    5 4 Final 

LD Waymead & 
Eastern Road  

6/6/11 22/7/11 Y Satisfactory  X    3 2 Final 

LD Headspace  16/6/11 28/7/11 Y Satisfactory   X  5 2  Final 
LD Breakthrough 
RBC 

16/6/11 28/7/11 Y   X    3  Final 

Drug & Alcohol 
Team 

           WIP 

Officer Expenses 16/8/11 17/10/11 Y Satisfactory  X     3 In draft 
awaiting 
management 
responses 

Shared Budgets 
RBC 

           Not due 

Personal Budgets             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

Controcc- IT audit             Not due as 
QTR 4 audit 

37



 
3.4 To date, limited assurance opinions have been given for 3 audits. All audits, 

which have generated a limited assurance opinion, will be revisited in 
2012/13, to ensure successful implementation of agreed recommendations.  
The key weaknesses identified during the three audits with a limited 
assurance opinion are as follows: 

 
 

DIRECTORATE AUDITS WITH LIMITED ASSURANCE 
CONCLUSION 

CHILDREN 
YOUNG PEOPLE 
AND LEARNING 

Binfield CE Primary School 
Limited assurance was concluded overall for this audit 
due to one priority 1 recommendation being raised to 
address concerns that there were limited documented 
financial procedures in place and also because of the 
high number of priority 2 recommendations (16).  
These related to governance and financial 
management arrangements, inventory, the private 
fund, lettings income, school trips, imprest and 
ordering. The Local Authority continues to support and 
work with the school in addressing the weaknesses 
highlighted in the audit report. The Assistant Director , 
Performance and Resources has visited the school 
and found that  and they are making good progress 
with a number of recommendations already 
completed.   
Headspace 
Headspace is a studio facility organised in conjunction 
with a number of organisations to provide local artists, 
with or without a disability to display their work. 
Expenditure for 2010/11 amounted to approximately 
£57k. The audit of Headspace resulted in a limited 
assurance conclusion as 5 priority 1 recommendations 
were raised. These were to address weaknesses in 
the completeness of income collected and banked,  
recording  of income, expenditure without supporting 
documentation and the fact that the bank account  
used for funding expenditure and banking income  
was outside of the Council’s accounting records. The 
Development Manager has advised Internal Audit that 
agreed actions to address these issues have been 
implemented.   

ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE AND 
HEALTH 

Emergency Duty Team  
The 5 priority 1 recommendations raised in this audit 
resulted in an overall conclusion of limited assurance. 
The recommendations raised were to ensure 
employment checks are renewed every 3 years, 
improve controls over overtime claims and checks on 
time sheets and  review the contract for the provision 
and maintenance of the MIS database and time 
recording procedures. The Head of Emergency 
Services has advised that actions are being taken 
forward to address the recommendations. New 
procedures have been implemented to improve 

38



controls over time sheets and overtime claims. The 
MIS database is now to be upgraded which will 
provide a more supportable solution and new 
procedures have been introduced for time recording. 
….. 

 
 

3.5 At the time of writing 20 completed questionnaires had been received since 
April 2011 for 2011/12 audits. All unsatisfactory evaluations are followed up.  
All outstanding questionnaires will be chased up once final reports have been 
issued. The results are summarised as follows: 

 
 

SATISFIED NOT 
SATISFIED TOTAL 

19 1 20 
 
3.6 The unsatisfactory questionnaire was followed up with the contractor to 

identify any lessons to be learned for future audits. 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 During the first half of 2011/12 the Risk Management Strategy was updated 

and reviewed at both the Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) and the 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) before being considered and approved 
by the Governance and Audit Committee.  

 
4.2 The key priorities identified in the Strategy for the next 12 months are to 

review the current arrangements for business continuity, maintain quarterly 
review of the Strategic Risk Register by SRMG and implement twice yearly 
review of the Register by CMT, consult DMTs on their risk management 
training requirements and review Members risk management training needs 
and attendance of the Information Security Officer at SRMG to raise 
awareness of information governance risks. Actions to address the key 
priorities for 2011/12 are being monitored at the Strategic Risk Management 
Group.  

     
4.3 The Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed quarterly by the SRMG during 

2011/12 and was last reviewed by CMT on 31st August 2011. Directorates 
have now all established their risk registers and are generally updating these 
quarterly and providing these to the Head of Audit and Risk Management to 
inform the Strategic Risk Register.   

 
    
 
5. OTHER INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITIES  
 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
 
5.1 The NFI is a biennial data matching exercise first introduced in 1996 and 

conducted by the Audit Commission to assist in the prevention and detection 
of fraud and error in public bodies. Bracknell Forest Council is obliged to 
participate in this. Data was submitted to the Audit Commission during 2010 

39



and matches received back in several stages during 2011. The majority of 
work has been completed on the NFI matches issued for investigation.  There 
is still some ongoing work on Housing and Council Tax Benefits cases, but no 
more work is expected to be carried out in the other areas covered by the 
exercise.  The following monies were recovered as a result of investigating 
these matches. 

 
Area £ 

 
Housing and Council Tax Benefits 7,060 

 
Private Care Homes 19,686 

 
Duplicate Payments 
 

9,044 
Total  
 

35,790 
 
 
5.2 In addition the exercise identified errors in the National Insurance numbers 

provided by staff and claimants to the Payroll and the Benefits sections. 
These have been corrected.  The data provided also enabled us to update 
our records relating to Blue Badges and E+ cards used for concessionary 
travel with recent deaths. 

 
5.3 We have been able to provide information to other local authorities to assist 

them in their investigations.   
 
5.4 Data is now being submitted to match Council Tax single person discounts to 

the Electoral Roll and the matches following this will be received in 2012 for 
follow up. 

  
Fraud and Irregularity 
 
5.5 Three potential irregularities were reported to Internal Audit during April to 

October, including one reported, initially, by a Member.  Two of these alleged 
irregularities related to schools and the third to adult social care.  All are 
currently being investigated and the outcomes will be reported to the 
Committee in a future assurance report. 

 
5.6 In addition to the work undertaken by Internal Audit on fraud and irregularities, 

there is a Benefits Investigation and Compliance Team. The Investigation and 
Compliance Team is located within the Benefits section of Housing in 
Environment Culture and Communities. It is therefore outside of the 
management of the Internal Audit Team. The Investigation and Compliance 
Team consists of a Senior Investigations Officer, one Investigation Officer and 
a Compliance Officer and is responsible for the investigation of potentially 
fraudulent claims for benefits. During the investigation of claims, Officers 
interview witnesses, take statements, carry out surveillance and interview 
under caution with a view to taking prosecution action. The Compliance 
Officer undertakes proactive visits to claimants to verify their details and 
confirm continuing entitlement to benefits. 

 

40



5.7 All cases are investigated, however many can be unfounded, some may 
create an overpayment as a result of an error and be recovered through 
normal recovery procedures. 

 
5.8 During the period 1 April to 14 October 2011 the Team received 824 fraud 

referrals of which 391 arose from data matching, 152 were mainstream 
referrals from sources such as the cheatchasers line, assessor referral and 
revenue recovery, 270 were from housing checks and 11 arose from joint 
working.  In addition, 420 compliance visits were made of which 285 were 
successful (applicant not at home in the remaining 135 cases)  

 
5.9 As a result of work undertaken by the Investigation and Compliance Team, 

the sanctions applied during this period were 23 Formal Cautions, 5 
Administration Penalties (a 30% penalty on top of overpaid benefit) and 16 
successful prosecutions. As at the 14th October there were 11 cases pending 
court hearing.  

 
5.10 For the period April to 14th October, the sanctions which resulted were from 

investigations initiated as follows:  
• 1 from NFI data matching; 
• 13 from other data matching; 
• 12 referrals from the Compliance Officer; 
• 9 from Housing Benefit Assessors; 
• 3 related to overpayments over £500 (these are as a matter of course 

referred to Benefits Investigation and Compliance Team); 
• 5 from joint working with jobcentreplus; and 
• 1 was highlighted by return of mail (mail is flagged as do not re-direct) 

 
5.11 The main reasons for referrals during the period were as follows:  
 

• 2 Job Seekers Allowance ceased but the claimant failed to inform the 
Housing Benefit Department; 

• 10 were income related; 
• 15 were working and claiming; 
• 9 undeclared tax credits; 
• 5 were not resident; 
• 1 had undeclared capital; 
• 1 had undeclared maintenance; and  
• 1 had an undeclared non-dependent. 

 
 
Other Internal Audit Reviews 
 
5.12 In July 2010, the S151 Officer requested that Internal Audit carry out a review 

to clarify the procedures in place over the payment, recording and recovery of 
deposits relating to Housing Options and over the collection and recording of 
rents directly payable to the Council for housing accommodation. 

41



 
5.13 At the time of the initial audit fieldwork in July 2010, only 2 out of the 594 

deposit loans had been fully input on ABRITAS and  limited action was being 
taken on debt recovery. One of the key reasons for this was the lack of 
resource to obtain all the necessary information to enable debts to be chased.  
A list of actions was agreed with the Chief Officer: Housing to address the 
weaknesses identified. In my report to the Governance and Audit Committee I 
reported on the action to be taken to address the matters highlighted and 
advised that Internal Audit would be undertaking a follow up audit in quarter 2 
of 2011/12 to ensure that these actions were being progressed.  

 
5.14 This follow up work was completed in September. This established progress 

had been made on most areas of weakness identified by the original review. 
However, further action was still needed to write off irrecoverable debts and 
refer debts where appropriate to the debt collecting agency and to ensure that 
full details are obtained from landlords for new deposits.  The Chief 
Officer:Housing is addressing the outstanding issues and this system will now 
be reviewed annually as part of the routine audit of the Council’s key systems.  

 
 

42


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 29 September 2011
	5 Annual Audit Letter
	Annual Audit Letter - Annex 1

	6 Internal Audit Assurance report
	Internal Audit Assurance Report - Annex 1


